¥ OF CONNECy,

A58 Ei
ST gl 7

- %)
_-./
/ v L
by nét

I'. X " v\
S
(Y

Cinsrgiy
General Assembly Raised Bill No. 5290
February Session, 2014 LCO No. 1394

* 01394 TRA

Referred to Committee on TRANSPORTATION

Introduced by:
(TRA)

AN ACT REVISING MOTOR VEHICLE LAWS.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General
Assembly convened:

O 0 N3 O G = W N -

10
11
12

13
14
15

Section 1. (NEW) (Effective from passage) No motor vehicle that is
engaged in taxicab service shall be registered by the commissioner if
such motor vehicle is older than ten model years old. Notwithstanding
any regulation adopted pursuant to section 13b-96 of the general
statutes to the contrary, any such motor vehicle that is validly
registered and will be older than ten model years old during such
registration period may continue taxicab service until the expiration
date of its current registration, after which such registration shall not
be renewed.

Sec. 2. Subsection (b) of section 14-12g of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective July
1, 2014):

(b) If a registered owner to whom notice of suspension was issued
pursuant to subsection (a) of this section does not contest the

determination that he or she has failed to maintain mandatory
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security, the commissioner may enter into a consent agreement with
the owner, provided the owner presents satisfactory evidence of
mandatory security and pays a civil penalty of two hundred dollars.
The consent agreement shall provide that the registration of the motor
vehicle shall not be suspended, or that any suspension imposed
previously, pursuant to subsection (a) of this section, shall be
rescinded, unless (1) the commissioner determines that on or after the
effective date of the consent agreement the owner failed to
continuously maintain the required security, and (2) the owner cannot
establish to the satisfaction of the commissioner that the owner
continuously maintained the required security after said effective date.
A registered owner who presents satisfactory evidence of mandatory

security and pays such civil penalty shall be deemed to have waived

the opportunity to contest the determination that such owner has

failed to maintain the mandatory security, whether or not such owner

has signed the consent agreement contemporaneously with the

payment of such penalty. Thereafter, all terms and conditions of such

consent agreement shall apply to such owner. Such consent agreement

shall not operate to prevent the commissioner from cancelling,
suspending or revoking a registration pursuant to any other provision

of the general statutes.

Sec. 3. Subsection (b) of section 14-36 of the 2014 supplement to the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective from passage):

(b) (1) A person eighteen years of age or older who does not hold a
motor vehicle operator's license may not operate a motor vehicle on
the public highways of the state for the purpose of instruction until
such person has applied for and obtained an adult instruction permit
from the commissioner. Such person shall not be eligible for an adult
instruction permit if such person has had a motor vehicle operator's
license or privilege suspended or revoked. An adult instruction permit
shall entitle the holder, while such holder has the permit in his or her
immediate possession, to operate a motor vehicle on the public
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highways, provided such holder is under the instruction of, and
accompanied by, a person who holds an instructor's license issued
under the provisions of section 14-73, as amended by this act, or a

person twenty years of age or older who has been licensed to operate,
for at least four years preceding the instruction, a motor vehicle of the
same class as the motor vehicle being operated and who has not had
his or her motor vehicle operator's license suspended by the
commissioner during the four-year period preceding the instruction.
The Commissioner of Motor Vehicles shall not issue a motor vehicle
operator's license to any person holding an adult instruction permit
who has held such permit for less than ninety days unless such person
(A) is a member of the armed forces on active duty outside the state, or
(B) has previously held a [Connecticut] motor vehicle operator's
license. (2) A person holding a valid out-of-state motor vehicle
operator's license may operate a motor vehicle for a period of thirty
days following such person's establishment of residence in
Connecticut, if the motor vehicle is of the same class as that for which
his or her out-of-state motor vehicle operator's license was issued. (3)
No person may cause or permit the operation of a motor vehicle by a
person under sixteen years of age.

Sec. 4. Subdivision (3) of subsection (a) of section 14-36g of the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective from passage):

(3) No such person shall operate any motor vehicle for which a
public passenger transportation [permit] endorsement is required in

accordance with the provisions of section 14-44, as amended by this

act, or a vanpool vehicle, as defined in section 14-1;

Sec. 5. Subsection (b) of section 14-37a of the 2014 supplement to the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective from passage):

(b) The commissioner may, in the commissioner's discretion upon a
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showing of significant hardship, grant each such application that is
submitted in proper form and contains such information and
attestation by the applicant as the commissioner may require. With
respect to an application for an education permit, an applicant shall
also be required to submit a schedule of the time and location of all
classes or other required educational activities attended by such
applicant. Such schedule shall be attested to by the registrar of such
educational institution. In determining whether to grant such
application, the commissioner may also consider the driving record of
the applicant and shall ascertain that the suspension is a final order
that is not under appeal pursuant to section 4-183. A special operator's
permit shall not be issued pursuant to this section to any person for the
operation of a motor vehicle for which a public passenger
transportation [permit] endorsement or commercial driver's license is
required or to any person whose operator's license has been suspended
previously pursuant to section 14-227a or 14-227b. A special operator's
permit shall not be issued pursuant to this section to any person whose
operator's license has been suspended pursuant to subparagraph (C) of
subdivision (1) of subsection (i) of section 14-227b for refusing to
submit to a blood, breath or urine test or analysis until such operator's
license has been under suspension for a period of not less than ninety
days. A person shall not be ineligible to be issued a special operator's
permit under this section solely on the basis of being convicted of two
violations of section 14-227a unless such second conviction is for a

violation committed after a prior conviction.

Sec. 6. Subsection (f) of section 14-41 of the 2014 supplement to the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective from passage):

(f) Notwithstanding the provisions of section 1-3a, if the expiration
date of any motor vehicle operator's license or any public passenger
transportation [permit] endorsement falls on any day when offices of
the commissioner are closed for business or are open for less than a full

business day, the license or permit shall be deemed valid until
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midnight of the next day on which offices of the commissioner are

open for a full day of business.

Sec. 7. Subsection (d) of section 14-44 of the general statutes is

repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective from
passage):

(d) Upon the arrest of any person who holds an operator's license

bearing a [school] public passenger transportation endorsement and
who is charged with a felony or violation of section 53a-73a, the
arresting officer or department, within forty-eight hours, shall cause a
report of such arrest to be made to the Commissioner of Motor
Vehicles. The report shall be made on a form approved by said
commissioner containing such information as the commissioner
prescribes. The Commissioner of Motor Vehicles may adopt
regulations, in accordance with chapter 54, to implement the

provisions of this subsection.

Sec. 8. Subsection (g) of section 14-44e of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
October 1, 2014):

(g) The commissioner may issue a commercial driver's instruction
permit to any person who holds a valid operator's license. [Said] Such
permit may be issued for a period not exceeding [six months] one

hundred eighty days, and may be reissued or renewed [, until June 30,

2011, for periods] for one additional period not exceeding [six months.

On and after July 1, 2011, only one renewal or reissuance may be
granted within a two-year period.] one hundred eighty days, provided

the reissuance or renewal of such permit occurs within a two-year

period from its initial issuance. On and after July 1, 2015, any holder of

a commercial driver's instruction permit who has not obtained a

commercial driver's license on or before the expiration date of such

reissued or renewed permit shall be required to retake the commercial

driver's license knowledge test and any applicable endorsement
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knowledge tests. The holder of a commercial driver's instruction

permit may, unless otherwise disqualified or suspended, drive a
commercial motor vehicle if such holder is accompanied by the holder
of a commercial driver's license of the appropriate class and bearing
endorsements for the type of vehicle being driven who occupies a seat
beside the individual for the purpose of giving instruction in driving
the commercial motor vehicle. The commissioner shall not administer

a commercial driver's license driving skills test to any holder of a

commercial driver's instruction permit unless such person has held

such permit for a minimum period of fourteen days.

Sec. 9. Section 14-44e of the general statutes is amended by adding
subsection (h) as follows (Effective October 1, 2014):

(NEW) (h) The commissioner shall deny or disqualify for a period of
sixty days a commercial driver's instruction permit or commercial
driver's license if it is determined that an applicant or holder has
provided false information on any certification the applicant or holder
is required to give relative to such permit or license application. If an
applicant or holder is suspected of fraud related to the issuance of a
commercial driver's instruction permit or commercial driver's license,
such applicant or holder shall be required to schedule the commercial
driver's license knowledge test and driving skills test within thirty
days after notification by the commissioner of the suspected fraud.
Failure to schedule both such tests or failure to pass both such tests
shall result in disqualification of such permit or license and the
applicant or holder shall be required to reapply for the permit or
license. Any applicant or holder convicted of fraud related to the
issuance of a commercial driver's instruction permit or commercial
driver's license shall have such applicant's or holder's permit or license
disqualified for one year from the date of conviction and shall be
required to retake such tests.

Sec. 10. Subsections (a) and (b) of section 14-44h of the general
statutes are repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof

LCO No. 1394 6 of 36



Raised Bill No. 5290

176

177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

190
191
192
193
194
195
196

197
198
199

200
201
202
203
204
205
206

(Effective October 1, 2014):

(a) Each commercial driver's license shall be renewed quadrennially
on the date of the operator's birthday. [On and after September 1, 2005,
each applicant shall, at the time of the first renewal such commercial
driver's license, provide the names of all states in which the applicant
ever has been issued a motor vehicle operator's license.] If the
applicant has held a license in another state at any time during the
preceding ten years, the commissioner shall request the driving history
record or records from the state or states in which the applicant has
been licensed. If the commissioner receives a request for a driving
history record from another state regarding the holder of a commercial
driver's license, the commissioner shall provide such record within
thirty days, as required by the provisions of 49 CFR 384.206, as
amended.

(b) A commercial driver's license shall expire within a period not
exceeding four years following the date of the operator's next birthday.
The fee for such original license shall be [computed at the rate of]
seventeen dollars and fifty cents per year. [or any part thereof.] Any
previously licensed operator who fails to renew a commercial driver's
license in accordance with this subsection shall be charged a late fee of

twenty-five dollars upon renewal of such commercial driver's license.

Sec. 11. Subsection (d) of section 14-50 of the 2014 supplement to the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective January 1, 2015):

[(d) Upon request by the chief of any regular fire department or
volunteer fire company operating in the state of Connecticut, the
commissioner shall waive the operator's examination fee in the case of
any member of any such fire department or company who applies for
a class 1 operator's license as provided in section 14-36a. The applicant
for such license shall satisfy all prerequisites for the issuance of a class

1 license.]
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(d) The commissioner may adopt procedures for issuing licenses on

an expedited basis and may charge a fee of not more than seventy-five

dollars for such expedited service.

Sec. 12. Subdivision (4) of subsection (b) of section 14-52 of the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective July 1, 2014):

(4) Each such bond required under subdivisions (1) to (3), inclusive,
of this subsection shall be conditioned upon the applicant or licensee
complying with the provisions of any state or federal law or regulation
relating to the conduct of such business and provided as indemnity for
any loss sustained by any [person] customer by reason of any acts of
the licensee constituting grounds for suspension or revocation of the
license or such licensee going out of business. Each cash bond shall be
deposited with the commissioner and each surety bond shall be
executed in the name of the state of Connecticut for the benefit of any
aggrieved [party] customer, but the penalty of the bond shall not be
invoked except upon order of the commissioner after a hearing held
before said commissioner in accordance with the provisions of chapter

54. For purposes of this subdivision, "customer" does not include any

person, firm or corporation that finances a licensed dealer's motor

vehicle inventory or any licensed dealer that buys motor vehicles from

or sells motor vehicles to another licensed dealer.

Sec. 13. Section 14-52a of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective July 1, 2014):

The commissioner may, after notice and hearing, refuse to grant or
renew a license to a person, firm or corporation to engage in the
business of selling or repairing motor vehicles pursuant to the
provisions of section 14-52, as amended by this act, if the applicant for

or holder of such a license, or an officer or major stockholder if the
applicant or licensee is a firm or corporation, has been convicted of a

violation of any provision of laws pertaining to the business of a motor
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vehicle dealer or repairer including a motor vehicle recycler, or of any
violation involving fraud, larceny or deprivation or misappropriation
of property, in the courts of the United States or of any state. At the
time of application for or renewal of such a license, each applicant or
licensee shall make full disclosure of any such conviction within the

last five years. The commissioner shall not grant or renew a license to

an applicant or licensee that is delinquent in the payment of sales tax

in connection with a business from which it is or was obligated to

remit sales tax, as reported to the commissioner by the Department of

Revenue Services.

Sec. 14. Section 14-61b of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective July 1, 2014):

The Commissioner of Motor Vehicles may permit any licensed
motor vehicle dealer or repairer to maintain, in an electronic format
prescribed by the commissioner, all records, documents and forms
required by the Department of Motor Vehicles. Such records,
documents and forms shall be produced in written format, [not later
than three business days,] upon request by the department, during the
licensee's business hours on the same day of such request.

Sec. 15. Subsection (a) of section 14-62 of the 2014 supplement to the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective July 1, 2014):

(a) Each sale shall be evidenced by an order properly signed by both
the buyer and seller, a copy of which shall be furnished to the buyer
when executed, and an invoice upon delivery of the motor vehicle,
both of which shall contain the following information: (1) Make of
vehicle; (2) year of model, whether sold as new or used, and on invoice
the identification number; (3) deposit, and (A) if the deposit is not
refundable, the words "No Refund of Deposit" shall appear at this
point, and (B) if the deposit is conditionally refundable, the words
"Conditional Refund of Deposit" shall appear at this point, followed by
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a statement giving the conditions for refund, and (C) if the deposit is
unconditionally refundable, the words "Unconditional Refund" shall
appear at this point; (4) cash selling price; (5) finance charges, and (A)
if these charges do not include insurance, the words "No Insurance"
shall appear at this point, and (B) if these charges include insurance, a
statement shall appear at this point giving the exact type of coverage;
(6) allowance on motor vehicle traded in, if any, and description of the
same; (7) stamped or printed in a size equal to at least ten-point bold
type on the face of both order and invoice one of the following forms:
(A) "This motor vehicle not guaranteed", or (B) "This motor vehicle is
guaranteed", followed by a statement as to the terms of such
guarantee, which statement shall not apply to household furnishings
of any trailer; (8) if the motor vehicle is new but has been subject to use
by the seller or use in connection with his business as a dealer, the
word "demonstrator" shall be clearly displayed on the face of both
order and invoice; (9) any dealer conveyance fee or processing fee and
a statement that such fee is not payable to the state of Connecticut
printed in at least ten-point bold type on the face of both order and

invoice; and (10) the dealer's legal name, address and license number.

For the purposes of this subdivision, "dealer conveyance fee" or
"processing fee" means a fee charged by a dealer to recover reasonable
costs for processing all documentation and performing services related
to the closing of a sale, including, but not limited to, the registration
and transfer of ownership of the motor vehicle which is the subject of
the sale.

Sec. 16. Subsection (a) of section 14-63 of the 2014 supplement to the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective from passage):

(@) The commissioner may make, alter or repeal regulations
governing the administration of all statutes relating to the license and
business of dealers and repairers in accordance with the provisions of
chapter 54. [Each such regulation shall become effective ten days after

a copy thereof has been mailed to all licensees affected thereby.]
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Sec. 17. Section 14-66b of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2014):

Each owner of a wrecker registered pursuant to subsection (c) of
section 14-66 shall keep and maintain a record stating the following
information: (1) The registration number of each motor vehicle towed

or transported [,] and the registration number of each wrecker used to

tow or transport such motor vehicle; (2) the date and time the tow

commenced and was completed; [,] (3) the location from which the

disabled motor vehicle was towed and the destination of such tow; [,]

(4) [total mileage traveled during such tow,] the mileage of the wrecker

at the commencement and completion of the tow; (5) the charge for

tow service and any other charges incurred for services related to such
tow; [] (6) the name and address of the person requesting tow service;
[[] and (7) any other information the commissioner deems necessary,
specified in regulations adopted in accordance with the provisions of
chapter 54. Such records shall be retained at the place of business of
the wrecker service for a period of two years and shall be available for
inspection during regular business hours by any law enforcement
officer or inspector designated by the Commissioner of Motor
Vehicles. Each owner of a wrecker shall also keep and maintain copies
of any written contracts with owners or lessees of property authorizing

the towing or removal of motor vehicles from the property of such

owner or lessee as provided in section 14-145, as amended by this act,
and such contracts shall be available for inspection by motor vehicle
owners, or agents of the owners, upon request. The Commissioner of
Motor Vehicles may permit any licensed motor vehicle dealer who
operates a wrecker service to maintain, in an electronic format
prescribed by the commissioner, all records, documents and forms
required by the Department of Motor Vehicles. Such records,
documents and forms shall be produced in written format, [not later
than three business days following a] upon request by the department,
during the licensee's business hours on the same day of such request.

Any person who violates any provision of this section shall be deemed
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to have committed an infraction.

Sec. 18. Subsection (e) of section 14-73 of the 2014 supplement to the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective July 1, 2014):

(e) The licensee shall be reexamined periodically in accordance with
standards specified in regulations adopted under section 14-78.
[Persons licensed for the first time as instructors shall, in the three
years following their initial licensure, attend seminars, annually, in
traffic safety sponsored by the Department of Motor Vehicles or take
an advanced instructor course of not less than forty-five clock hours in
traffic safety approved by the commissioner. Proof of compliance with
the requirement for attendance at seminars or the taking of instruction
shall be made before license renewals are issued. The seminars shall be

self-sustaining.]

Sec. 19. Section 14-145 of the 2014 supplement to the general statutes
is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective July
1, 2014):

(a) An owner or lessee of private property, or his agent, may remove
or cause to be removed any motor vehicle left without authorization
on such property in accordance with the provisions of this section and
sections 14-145a to 14-145c, inclusive. This section shall not apply to
law enforcement, fire-fighting, rescue, ambulance or emergency
vehicles which are marked as such, or to the removal of motor vehicles

from property leased by any governmental agency.

(b) When such motor vehicle is towed or otherwise removed by a
wrecker licensed under section 14-66, the licensee or operator of the
wrecker shall notify the local police department of the tow or removal
within two hours. Such notification shall be submitted in writing or
transmitted by facsimile or electronic mail and the record of such
notification shall be retained by such licensee in accordance with the

provisions of section 14-66b, as amended by this act. The local police

LCO No. 1394 12 of 36



Raised Bill No. 5290

366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385

386
387
388
389
390
391

392
393
394
395
396

397

department shall, within forty-eigcht hours of receiving such

notification, enter the vehicle identification number into the National

Crime Information Center database and the Connecticut On-Line Law

Enforcement Communications Teleprocessing System to determine

whether such motor vehicle has been reported as stolen. If such motor

vehicle has been reported as stolen, the local police department shall

immediately notify the department that reported the vehicle as stolen.

No such licensee or operator may charge a storage fee for such motor
vehicle for the time it is stored prior to such notification. If such motor

vehicle is not claimed within forty-eight hours, the licensee or operator

of the wrecker or of the garage where such motor vehicle is stored

shall immediately complete a notice of such tow, on a form prescribed

by the commissioner, and mail a copy of such form by certified mail,

return receipt requested, to the owner and all lienholders of record. If

the motor vehicle is not claimed by its owner within the time periods
specified in subsection (e) of section 14-150, the licensee or operator of
the wrecker or of the garage where such motor vehicle is stored may
dispose of it in accordance with the provisions of [subsection (e)]

subsections (¢g) to (i), inclusive, of section 14-150, as amended by this

act.

(c) The commissioner may adopt regulations in accordance with the

provisions of chapter 54 (1) specifying the circumstances under which

title to any motor vehicle towed or stored, or both, under this section

may be transferred to any person, firm or corporation towing or

storing such vehicle, and (2) establishing the procedure whereby such

person, firm or corporation may obtain title to such motor vehicle.

[(c)] (d) Any person who violates any provision of this section shall,
for a first offense, be deemed to have committed an infraction and be
fined fifty dollars, and, for each subsequent offense, shall be fined not
less than fifty dollars [nor] and not more than one hundred dollars or

imprisoned not more than thirty days or be both fined and imprisoned.

Sec. 20. Subsections (g) to (i), inclusive, of section 14-150 of the 2014
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supplement to the general statutes are repealed and the following is
substituted in lieu thereof (Effective July 1, 2014):

(g) The owner or keeper of any garage or other place where such
motor vehicle is stored shall have a lien upon the same for such

owner's or keeper's towing [and] or storage charges, or both, that

result from towing or storage under this section. Unless title has

already vested in the municipality pursuant to subsection (d) of this
section, if the current market value of such motor vehicle as
determined in good faith by such owner or keeper does not exceed one
thousand five hundred dollars and such motor vehicle has been stored
for a period of not less than fifteen days, such owner or keeper may,
unless an application filed by the owner pursuant to subsection (e) of
this section is pending and the owner of such motor vehicle has
notified such owner or keeper that such application for hearing has
been filed, sell the same for storage and towing charges owed thereon,
provided a notice of intent to sell shall be sent to the commissioner, the
owner and any lienholder of record of such motor vehicle, if known,
five days before the sale of such vehicle. If the current market value of
such motor vehicle as determined in good faith by such owner or
keeper exceeds one thousand five hundred dollars and if such motor
vehicle has been so stored for a period of forty-five days, such owner
or keeper shall, unless an application filed by the owner pursuant to
subsection (e) of this section is pending and the owner of such motor
vehicle has notified such owner or keeper that such application for
hearing has been filed, sell the same at public auction for cash, at such
owner's or keeper's place of business, and apply the avails of such sale
toward the payment of such owner's or keeper's charges and the
payment of any debt or obligation incurred by the officer who placed
the same in storage, provided if the last place of abode of the owner of
such motor vehicle is known to or may be ascertained by such garage
owner or keeper by the exercise of reasonable diligence, notice of the
time and place of sale shall be given to such owner and any lienholder

of record by mailing such notice to such owner [in a registered or

LCO No. 1394 14 of 36



Raised Bill No. 5290

431
432
433
434
435
436
437

438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450

451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463

certified letter, postage paid] by certified mail, return receipt

requested, at such last usual place of abode, at least five days before
the time of sale. At any public auction held pursuant to this subsection,
such garage owner or keeper may set a minimum bid equal to the
amount of such owner's or keeper's charges and obligations with
respect to the tow and storage of the motor vehicle. If no such bid is

made, such owner or keeper may sell or dispose of such vehicle.

(h) The garage owner or keeper shall report the sales price, storing,
towing and repair charges, if any; buyer's name and address;
identification of the vehicle and such other information as may be
required in regulations which shall be adopted by the commissioner in
accordance with the provisions of chapter 54, to the commissioner
within fifteen days after the sale of the motor vehicle. The proceeds of
such sale, after deducting the amount due such garage owner or
keeper and all expenses connected with such sale, including the
expenses of the officer who placed such motor vehicle in storage, shall
be paid to the owner of such motor vehicle or such owner's legal
representatives, if claimed by such owner or them at any time within
one year from the date of such sale. If such balance is not claimed

within said period, it shall escheat to the state.

(i) If the owner of such motor vehicle placed in storage in
accordance with the provisions of this section does not claim such
motor vehicle within thirty days, the owner of such garage or other
place of storage shall, within forty days of the date such motor vehicle
was placed in storage with such owner, send a written notice to the
commissioner, stating the make [, engine number and chassis] and

vehicle identification number of such motor vehicle, the date such

motor vehicle was left with such owner for storage and by whom and
the registration number thereof if any number plates are on such
motor vehicle, which notice shall be placed on file by the commissioner
and shall be subject to public inspection. The fee for filing such notice
shall be five dollars. Any sale under the provisions of this section shall

be void, unless the notice required by this section has been given to the
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commissioner.

Sec. 21. Section 14-163d of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2014):

(@) At least once every year, each owner of a motor vehicle
described in subsection (a) of section 14-163c shall file with the
Commissioner of Motor Vehicles evidence that the owner has in effect
the security requirements imposed by law for each such motor vehicle.
The evidence shall be filed in such form as the commissioner
prescribes in accordance with a schedule established by the

commissioner.

(b) The Commissioner of Motor Vehicles may establish a system to
verify, by means of electronic communication, that an owner of a
motor vehicle described in subsection (a) of section 14-163c has the
security requirements imposed by law. If the commissioner uses such
system to make an inquiry to any insurance company that is licensed
to issue automobile liability insurance in this state, or to any data
source maintained by the United States Department of Transportation
pursuant to the provisions of Title 49, Part 387 of the Code of Federal
Regulations, as amended, the commissioner may accept the results of
such inquiry in lieu of a filing by the owner pursuant to subsection (a)

of this section, for the period for which such filing is required.

() When the owner of a motor vehicle files evidence under

subsection (a) of this section or when a company licensed to issue

automobile liability insurance in this state provides verification under

subsection (b) of this section, the commissioner shall construe such

evidence or verification as proof that the owner of a motor vehicle or

motor vehicles described in subsection (a) of section 14-163c has

insurance coverage of not less than the amounts required under Title

49, Part 387 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as amended, or any

applicable section of chapter 246.

[(©)] (d) In addition to other penalties provided by law, the
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Commissioner of Motor Vehicles, after notice and opportunity for
hearing in accordance with chapter 54, shall suspend the registration
of each motor vehicle registered in the name of any owner who fails to
file a motor carrier identification report or to provide satisfactory

evidence of the security requirements imposed by law.

[(d)] (e) Each filing made in accordance with the provisions of
subsection (a) of this section by each for-hire motor carrier or private
motor carrier of property or passengers, and each owner of any motor
vehicle that transports hazardous materials, as described in subsection
(a) of section 14-163c, shall provide satisfactory evidence of insurance
coverage or other security in amounts not less than are required by the
provisions of Title 49, Part 387 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as
amended. Such requirement concerning the amount of security that
must be evidenced to the commissioner may be made applicable by the
commissioner to the initial registration of any such motor vehicle,
including the registration of any motor vehicle under the International

Registration Plan, in accordance with the provisions of section 14-34a.

Sec. 22. Subsection (a) of section 14-166 of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
October 1, 2014):

(a) The acquisition of a certificate of title shall not be required and
the issuance of a certificate of title by the Commissioner of Motor
Vehicles shall not be required for the following: (1) A vehicle owned
by the United States, unless it is registered in this state; (2) a vehicle
owned by a manufacturer or dealer and held for sale, even though
incidentally moved on the highway or used for purposes of testing or
demonstration; or a vehicle used by a manufacturer solely for testing;
(3) a vehicle owned by a nonresident of this state and not required by
law to be registered in this state; (4) a vehicle regularly engaged in the
interstate transportation of persons or property for which a currently
effective certificate of title has been issued in another state; (5) a vehicle
moved solely by animal power; (6) an implement of husbandry; (7)
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special mobile equipment; (8) a self-propelled wheel chair or invalid
tricycle; (9) any trailer having a gross weight not in excess of three
thousand pounds; (10) any vehicle for which a temporary registration
has been issued pursuant to section 14-12 for the purpose of permitting
a nonresident owner who purchases a vehicle in Connecticut to
transport such vehicle to such owner's home state; (11) a motor vehicle
owned by the state or any town, city or borough within the state; (12) a
motor vehicle registered temporarily for inspection purposes pursuant

to section 14-12; and (13) a motor vehicle older than twenty model

years old, for which the commissioner may issue a certificate of title in

such commissioner's discretion. [The acquisition of a certificate of title

for any vehicle manufactured prior to 1981 shall not be required. The
commissioner, in his discretion, may issue such certificate of title for

such a vehicle.]

Sec. 23. Section 14-224 of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2014):

(@) Each [person operating] operator of a motor vehicle who is
knowingly involved in an accident which [causes serious physical
injury, as defined in section 53a-3, to or] results in the death of any
other person shall at once stop and render such assistance as may be

needed and shall give [his] such operator's name, address and

operator's license number and registration number [to the person
injured or] to any officer or witness to the death [or serious physical
injury] of any person, and if such operator of the motor vehicle causing
the death [or serious physical injury] of any person is unable to give

[his] such operator's name, address and operator's license number and

registration number to [the person injured or to] any witness or officer,
for any reason or cause, such operator shall immediately report such
death [or serious physical injury] of any person to a police officer, a
constable, a state police officer or an inspector of motor vehicles or at
the nearest police precinct or station, and shall state in such report the
location and circumstances of the accident causing the death [or

serious physical injury] of any person and [his] such operator's name,
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address, operator's license number and registration number.

(b) (1) Each [person operating] operator of a motor vehicle who is
knowingly involved in an accident which causes serious physical
injury, as defined in section 53a-3, to any other person [or injury or
damage to property] shall at once stop and render such assistance as

may be needed and shall give [his] such operator's name, address and

operator's license number and registration number to the person
injured [or to the owner of the injured or damaged property,] or to any
officer or witness to the serious physical injury to person. [or injury or
damage to property, and if] If such operator of the motor vehicle
causing the serious physical injury of any person [or injury or damage

to any property] is unable to give [his] such operator's name, address

and operator's license number and registration number to the person
injured or [the owner of the property injured or damaged, or] to any
witness or officer, for any reason or cause, such operator shall
immediately report such serious physical injury of any person [or
injury or damage to property] to a police officer, a constable, a state
police officer or an inspector of motor vehicles or at the nearest police
precinct or station, and shall state in such report the location and
circumstances of the accident causing the serious physical injury of any

person [or the injury or damage to property] and [his] such operator's

name, address, operator's license number and registration number.

(2) Each operator of a motor vehicle who is knowingly involved in

an accident that causes physical injury, as defined in section 53a-3, to

any other person shall at once stop and render such assistance as may

be needed and shall give such operator's name, address and operator's

license number and registration number to the person injured or to any

officer or witness to the physical injury. If such operator of the motor

vehicle causing the physical injury is unable to give such operator's

name, address and operator's license number and registration number

to the person injured or to any witness or officer, for any reason or

cause, such operator shall immediately report such physical injury of

any person to a police officer, a constable, a state police officer or an
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inspector of motor vehicles or at the nearest police precinct or station,

and shall state in such report the location and circumstances of the

accident causing the physical injury of any person and such operator's

name, address, operator's license number and registration number.

(c) Each operator of a motor vehicle who is knowingly involved in

an accident that causes injury or damage to property shall at once stop

and render such assistance as may be needed and shall give such

operator's name, address and operator's license number and

registration number to the owner of the injured or damaged property,

or to any officer or witness to the injury or damage to property, and if

such operator of the motor vehicle causing the injury or damage to any

property is unable to g¢ive such operator's name, address and

operator's license number and registration number to the owner of the

property injured or damaged, or to any witness or officer, for any

reason or cause, such operator shall immediately report such injury or

damage to property to a police officer, a constable, a state police officer

or an inspector of motor vehicles or at the nearest police precinct or

station, and shall state in such report the location and circumstances of

the accident causing the injury or damage to property and such

operator's name, address, operator's license number and registration

number.

[(c)] (d) (1) No person shall operate a motor vehicle upon any public
highway for a wager or for any race or for the purpose of making a

speed record.

(2) No person shall (A) possess a motor vehicle under circumstances
manifesting an intent that it be used in a race or event prohibited
under subdivision (1) of this subsection, (B) act as a starter, timekeeper,
judge or spectator at a race or event prohibited under subdivision (1)
of this subsection, or (C) wager on the outcome of a race or event
prohibited under subdivision (1) of this subsection.

[(d)] (e) Each person operating a motor vehicle who is knowingly
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involved in an accident on a limited access highway which causes
damage to property only shall immediately move or cause his motor
vehicle to be moved from the traveled portion of the highway to an
untraveled area which is adjacent to the accident site if it is possible to
move the motor vehicle without risk of further damage to property or

injury to any person.

[(e)] (f) No person who acts in accordance with the provisions of
subsection [(d)] (e) of this section may be considered to have violated
subsection [(b)] (c) of this section.

[(©)] (g) Any person who violates the provisions of subsection (a) or

subdivision (1) of subsection (b) of this section shall be fined not more

than ten thousand dollars or be imprisoned not less than one year nor

more than ten years or be both fined and imprisoned.

[(g)] (h) Any person who violates the provisions of subdivision (2)

of subsection (b) or subsection (c) of this section shall be fined not less
than seventy-five dollars nor more than six hundred dollars or be
imprisoned not more than one year or be both fined and imprisoned,
and for any subsequent offense shall be fined not less than one
hundred dollars nor more than one thousand dollars or imprisoned

not more than one year or be both fined and imprisoned.

[(h)] (i) In addition to any penalty imposed pursuant to subsection
[(g)] (h) of this section: (1) If any person is convicted of a violation of
subdivision (1) of subsection [(c)] (d) of this section and the motor
vehicle being operated by such person at the time of the violation is
registered to such person, the court may order such motor vehicle to be
impounded for not more than thirty days and such person shall be
responsible for any fees or costs resulting from such impoundment; or
(2) if any person is convicted of a violation of subdivision (1) of
subsection [(c)] (d) of this section and the motor vehicle being operated
by such person at the time of the violation is not registered to such

person, the court may fine such person not more than two thousand
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dollars, and for any subsequent offense may fine such person not more

than three thousand dollars.

Sec. 24. Subsection (b) of section 14-275 of the 2014 supplement to
the general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective July 1, 2014):

(b) Each school bus shall be painted a uniform yellow color known
as "National School Bus Glossy Yellow", except for the fenders and
trim which may be painted black and the roof which may be painted
white, and shall have conspicuously painted on the rear and on the
front of such vehicle, in black lettering of a size to be determined by
the Commissioner of Motor Vehicles, the words "School Bus-Stop on
Signal", except that each school bus equipped with an eight-light
warning system shall have the words "School Bus" painted on the rear
and on the front of such vehicle in such lettering. The sides of such
vehicles may be inscribed with the words "School Bus", the school
name or such other legend or device as may be necessary for purposes
of identification or safety. Each school bus [, and any student
transportation vehicle, as defined in section 14-212, regularly used by
any town, regional school district, private school or entity contracting
with such town, regional school district or private school to transport
school children to and from school or school activities,] shall have
conspicuously painted on the rear and sides of such bus, [or student
transportation vehicle,] in black lettering of a size to be determined by
the commissioner, the name of the school bus company, the school bus
company's telephone number and the school bus number. [or the name
of the owner or operator of such student transportation vehicle, the
telephone number of such owner or operator and the fleet number of
such student transportation vehicle.] Any student transportation

vehicle, as defined in section 14-212, regularly used by anvy town,

regional school district, private school or entity contracting with such

town, regional school district or private school to transport school

children to and from school or school activities, shall have

conspicuously painted on the rear and sides of such student
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transportation vehicle, in lettering of a color that contrasts with the

vehicle's backeground and of a size to be determined by the

commissioner, the name of the owner or operator of such student

transportation vehicle, the telephone number of such owner or

operator and the fleet number of such student transportation vehicle.

Sec. 25. Section 14-282a of the general statutes is repealed and the

following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective from passage):

[(a)] The Commissioner of Motor Vehicles shall [establish eight

inspection districts] assign the necessary number of inspectors for the

purpose of maintaining a system of continuing inspection of school
buses and student transportation vehicles, investigation of accidents
involving school buses and student transportation vehicles and
investigation of complaints against the owners and drivers of school
buses and student transportation vehicles, and to coordinate the

various school bus safety programs.

[(b) The commissioner is authorized to add six inspectors to the

present staff in order to carry out the provisions of this section.]

Sec. 26. Section 49-61 of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective July 1, 2014):

(@) The owner of any personal property which is held by one who
claims to be a bailee for hire of that personal property and to have a
lien in consequence thereof, or anyone having a legal or equitable
interest in that property, may apply in writing to any judge of the
Superior Court, within whose jurisdiction that personal property is
held or the lienor resides, to dissolve the lien upon the substitution of a

bond with surety.

(b) If the property is a motor vehicle and if no application that the
lien be dissolved upon such substitution of a bond is made within
thirty days of the date of the completion of the work upon the property
by the bailor for hire, the bailee shall immediately send a written notice
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to the Commissioner of Motor Vehicles, stating the [engine number

and chassis] vehicle identification number thereof, the date the motor

vehicle was left with such bailee, the date the work was completed, the
amount for which a lien is claimed, the registration thereof if any
number plates are on the motor vehicle and the name of the owner or
person who authorized the work to be done, and shall enclose a fee of
tive dollars. Such notice shall be placed on file by the Commissioner of

Motor Vehicles and be open to public inspection. Except for the thirty-

dav period immediately following completion of the work on such

motor vehicle, the commissioner may limit the number of days that a

bailee may charge for the storage of the motor vehicle prior to the time

that the bailee files such notice with the commissioner unless the bailee

provides evidence to the commissioner sufficient to show that the

storage charges accrued as a result of the bailee's reliance upon

statements or representations made by the bailor or as the result of the

bailee's good faith efforts to negotiate the return of such motor vehicle

to the bailor. If the motor vehicle is subject to a security interest, the
commissioner, within ten days of receipt of such notice, shall send the
bailee the name and address of any lienholder as recorded on the
certificate of title. Within ten days of receipt of such information
relative to any lienholder, the bailee shall mail written notice to each
lienholder [in a registered or certified letter, postage paid] by certified
mail, return receipt requested, stating that the motor vehicle is being

held by such bailee and has a lien upon it for repair and storage
charges. Any sale under the provisions of this section shall be void
unless the notice required in this section has been given to said

commissioner, if the property is a motor vehicle.

(c) If no application for such dissolution of the lien has been made
by the bailor for hire within three months from the date of completion
of the work upon the property, or if the property has not been
replevied, the bailee may sell the property at public auction for cash at
his place of business and apply the proceeds of the sale, first toward

the payment of the debt or obligation owing to him and second toward

LCO No. 1394 24 of 36



Raised Bill No. 5290

751
752

753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762

763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772

773
774
775

776
777
778
779
780
781

the payment of any balance due on any conditional bill of sale held on

the property.

(d) The sale shall be advertised, in a newspaper published or having
a circulation in the town where the bailee's place of business is
situated, three times, commencing at least ten days before the sale and,
if the last usual place of abode of the bailor is known to or may
reasonably be ascertained by the bailee, notice of the time and place of
sale shall be given by mailing the notice to him [in a registered or

certified letter, postage prepaid] by certified mail, return receipt

requested, at least ten days before the time of the sale, and similar
notice shall be given to any officer who has placed an attachment on
the property and, if the property is a motor vehicle, any lienholder.

(e) The proceeds of such sale, after the payment of the amount
owing to the bailee and all expense connected with the sale and of any
balance due on any conditional bill of sale, shall be paid to any officer
who has placed an attachment on the property and be held by that
officer in the same manner as though such moneys had been originally
attached. If there has been no attachment, the balance shall be paid to
the owner of the property or his legal representatives, if called for or
claimed by him or them at any time within one year from the date of
the sale, and, if the balance is not claimed or called for as aforesaid

within said period, it shall escheat to the state.

Sec. 27. Subsection (a) of section 14-280 of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective July
1, 2014):

(@) When a school bus is used for any purpose other than the
transportation of children to and from schools or school activities,
private or public camps or any other activities for which groups of
children are transported, the special signals normally used when so
engaged shall be left unused or disconnected. Any student

transportation vehicle when engaged in the transportation of children
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to and from private or public camps or the transportation exclusively
of children to activities, except school activities, may display a sign or
signs, as described in subsection (b) of this section. Any motor vehicle,
other than a registered school bus, not owned by a public, private or
religious school, or under contract to such school, when engaged in the
transportation of school children to and from school or school
activities, may display a sign or signs, as described in subsection (b) of
this section. Any student transportation vehicle, when engaged in the
transportation of school children to and from school or school
activities, shall display a sign or signs, as described in subsection (b) of
this section. Any portable signs, as described in subsection (b) of this
section, that are permitted or required under this section [shall] may be
removed or covered when the vehicle is not being used for the
purposes requiring or allowing the use of such signs as specified in

this section.

Sec. 28. Subsection (g) of section 13b-59 of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective from

passage):

(g) "Motor vehicle related fines, penalties or other charges" means
all fines, penalties or other charges required by, or levied pursuant to
subsection (a) of section 14-12, except for subdivision (2) of said
subsection (a), sections [14-12s,] 14-13, 14-16, 14-17, 14-18, 14-26, 14-27
and 14-29, subsection (d) of section 14-35 and sections 14-36, as
amended by this act, 14-39, 14-43, 14-45, 14-64, 14-80, 14-81, 14-97,
14-98, 14-99, 14-101, 14-102, 14-103, 14-104, 14-105, 14-106, 14-110,
14-111, as amended by this act, 14-112, 14-137a, 14-140, 14-145, as
amended by this act, 14-146, 14-147, 14-148, 14-149, 14-150, as amended
by this act, 14-151, 14-152, 14-161, subsection (f) of section 14-164i,
14-196, 14-197, 14-198, 14-213, 14-214, 14-215, 14-216, 14-217, 14-218a,
14-219, 14-220, 14-221, 14-222, 14-223, 14-224, as amended by this act,
14-225, 14-226, as amended by this act, 14-228, 14-230, 14-231, 14-232,
14-233, 14-234, 14-235, 14-236, 14-237, 14-238, 14-239, 14-240, 14-241,
14-242, 14-243, 14-244, 14-245, 14-246a, 14-247, 14-249, 14-250, 14-257,
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14-260, 14-261, 14-262, 14-264, 14-267a, 14-269, subsection (g) of section
14-270, sections 14-271, 14-273, 14-274, 14-275, as amended by this act,
14-276, 14-277, 14-280, as amended by this act, 14-281, 14-282, 14-283,
14-285, 14-286, 14-295, 14-296, 14-300, 14-314, 14-329, 14-331, 14-342,
14-386, 14-386a, 14-387, 15-7, 15-8, 15-9, 15-25 and 15-33;

Sec. 29. Subsection (b) of section 14-36i of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
October 1, 2014):

(b) If any person operating a motor vehicle, subject to the provisions
of section 14-36g, as amended by this act, is stopped by a police officer

and arrested or issued a summons by such officer for a violation of
subdivision (4) of subsection (a) of section 14-219, section 14-227a or
14-227g, subsection [(c)] (d) of section 14-224, as amended by this act,

or section 14-222, the motor vehicle operator's license of such person

shall be suspended for a period of forty-eight hours commencing on
the date and time such person is arrested or such summons is issued,
and such officer, acting on behalf of the Commissioner of Motor
Vehicles, shall immediately seize and take possession of such person's
motor vehicle operator's license and cause such motor vehicle to be
removed. In order to regain possession of such person's operator's
license after such forty-eight-hour period, such person and, unless
such person is emancipated in accordance with the provisions of
section 46b-150b, such person's parent or legal guardian shall appear
in person at the police department, state police barracks or other
location designated by the police officer, and sign a written
acknowledgement of the return of such license. No restoration fee shall
be required to be paid to the commissioner, in accordance with the
provisions of section 14-50b, but the police officer shall make a written
report of the violation and the suspension action, in such form and
containing such information as the commissioner shall prescribe, and
shall file or transmit such report to the commissioner in such time and
manner as the commissioner shall prescribe.
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Sec. 30. Subsection (b) of section 14-111 of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
October 1, 2014):

(b) (1) Except as provided in subdivision (2) or (3) of this subsection,
whenever the holder of any motor vehicle operator's license has been
convicted or has forfeited any bond taken or has received a suspended
judgment or sentence for any of the following violations, the
commissioner shall, without hearing, suspend such person's operator's
license or privilege to operate a motor vehicle in this state as follows:
For a first violation of subsection (a) or subdivision (1) of subsection (b)
of section 14-224, as amended by this act, or section 14-110, 14-215 or

53a-119b, for a period of not less than one year and, for a subsequent

violation thereof, for a period of not less than two years; for a violation
of subsection (a) of section 14-222 or subsection [(c)] (d) of section 14-
224, as amended by this act, for a period of not less than thirty days or

more than ninety days and, for a subsequent violation thereof, for a

period of not less than ninety days; for a violation of subdivision (2) of

subsection (b) or subsection (c) of section 14-224, as amended by this

act, for a period of not less than ninety days and for a subsequent
violation thereof, for a period of not less than one year; for a first
violation of subsection (b) of section 14-147, for a period of not less
than ninety days and, for a subsequent violation thereof, for a period
of not less than five years; for a first violation of subsection (c) of
section 14-147, for a period of not less than thirty days and, for a

subsequent violation thereof, for a period of not less than one year.

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of section 14-111b and except as
provided in subdivision (3) of this subsection, whenever the holder of
any motor vehicle operator's license or youth instruction permit who is
less than eighteen years of age or whenever a person who does not
hold an operator's license who is less than eighteen years of age has
been convicted or has forfeited any bond taken or has received a
suspended judgment or sentence for any of the following violations,

the commissioner shall suspend such person's operator's license or
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privilege to obtain an operator's license as follows: For a first violation
of subdivision (4) of subsection (a) of section 14-219 or subdivision (4)
of subsection (b) of section 14-219, for a period of sixty days and, for a
second violation thereof, for a period of ninety days and, for a third or
subsequent violation thereof, for a period of six months; for a first
violation of subsection (a) of section 14-222, for a period of six months
and, for a subsequent violation thereof, for a period of one year; for a
violation of subsection [(c)] (d) of section 14-224, as amended by this

act, for a period of six months and, for a subsequent violation thereof,

for a period of one year; for a first violation of section 14-296aa, for a
period of thirty days and, for a second violation thereof, for a period of
ninety days and, for a third or subsequent violation thereof, for a

period of six months.

(3) The commissioner shall suspend the motor vehicle operator's
license of any youth adjudged a youthful offender for a violation of
section 14-215 or 14-222, subsection (b) of section 14-223 or subdivision
(2) of subsection (b) or subsection (c) or (d) of section 14-224, as
amended by this act, for six months for a first offense and one year for

a second or subsequent offense.

(4) Whenever any person who has not been issued a motor vehicle

operator's license under section 14-36, as amended by this act, is

convicted of a second or subsequent violation of subsection (a) of

section 14-36, as amended by this act: (A) The commissioner shall

suspend such person's privilege to operate a motor vehicle, (B) such
suspension shall remain in effect for a period of ninety days, and (C)
the commissioner shall not issue an operator's license to such person

under section 14-36, as amended by this act, until such period of

suspension has expired and all applicable requirements for such

license have been satisfied by such person.

Sec. 31. Section 14-226 of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2014):
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Any person who has knowledge of causing, by the operation of a
motor vehicle, injury or death to a dog shall at once stop and render
such assistance as may be possible, shall immediately report such
injury or death to such dog's owner or such owner's representative and
shall give his name, address and operator's license and registration
numbers to such owner or representative or any witness or peace
officer. If unable to ascertain and locate such owner or representative,
such operator shall, at once, report the injury or death to a police
officer, constable, state police officer or inspector of motor vehicles, to
whom he shall give the location of such accident and a description of
the dog. Violation of any provision of this section shall be an
infraction. No operator shall be convicted under the provisions of
subsection [(b)] (c) of section 14-224, as amended by this act, when

such operator has caused injury or death to a dog.

Sec. 32. Subsection (c) of section 38a-806 of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
October 1, 2014):

(c) Each policy in force under a mass marketing plan on or before
October 1, 1999, shall be eligible for issue on a guaranteed issue basis
for one year after October 1, 1999, except if the applicant has been
convicted of violating any provision of subsection (d) of section 14-12,
section 14-43, 14-222 or 14-222a, or subsection (a) or subdivision (1) of
subsection (b) of section 14-224, as amended by this act, or 14-227a
within three years of the applicant's application, or convicted within

three years of the applicant's application of operating a motor vehicle

while the applicant's operator's license was suspended or revoked.

Sec. 33. Subsection (k) of section 46b-124 of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
October 1, 2014):

(k) Records of cases of juvenile matters involving delinquency

proceedings, or any part thereof, containing information that a child
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has been convicted as delinquent for a violation of subdivision (e) of
section 1-1h, subsection (c) of section 14-147, subsection (a) of section
14-215, section 14-222, subsection (b) of section 14-223, subsection (a),
(b), [or] (c) or (d) of section 14-224, as amended by this act, section 30-
88a or subsection (b) of section 30-89, shall be disclosed to the
Department of Motor Vehicles for administrative use in determining

whether administrative sanctions regarding such child's motor vehicle
operator's license are warranted. Records disclosed pursuant to this

subsection shall not be further disclosed.

Sec. 34. Section 54-1q of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2014):

The court shall not accept a plea of guilty or nolo contendere from a
person in a proceeding with respect to a violation of section 14-110,
subsection (b) or (c) of section 14-147, section 14-215, subsection (a) of
section 14-222, subsection (a), [or] (b) or (c) of section 14-224, as

amended by this act, or section 53a-119b unless the court advises such

person that conviction of the offense for which such person has been
charged may have the consequence of the Commissioner of Motor

Vehicles suspending such person's motor vehicle operator's license.

Sec. 35. Subsection (b) of section 54-56e of the 2014 supplement to

the general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective October 1, 2014):

(b) The court may, in its discretion, invoke such program on motion
of the defendant or on motion of a state's attorney or prosecuting
attorney with respect to a defendant (1) who, the court believes, will
probably not offend in the future, (2) who has no previous record of
conviction of a crime or of a violation of section 14-196, subsection (c)
of section 14-215, section 14-222a, subsection (a) or subdivision (1) of

subsection (b) of section 14-224, as amended by this act, or section 14-

227a, and (3) who states under oath, in open court or before any person
designated by the clerk and duly authorized to administer oaths,
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under the penalties of perjury, that the defendant has never had such
program invoked in the defendant's behalf or, with respect to a
defendant who is a veteran, that the defendant has not had such
program invoked in the defendant's behalf more than once previously,
provided the defendant shall agree thereto and provided notice has
been given by the defendant, on a form approved by rule of court, to
the victim or victims of such crime or motor vehicle violation, if any,
by registered or certified mail and such victim or victims have an
opportunity to be heard thereon. Any defendant who makes
application for participation in such program shall pay to the court an
application fee of thirty-five dollars. For the purposes of this section,
"veteran" means a person who is (A) a veteran, as defined in
subsection (a) of section 27-103, or (B) eligible to receive services from
the United States Department of Veterans Affairs pursuant to Title 38
of the United States Code.

Sec. 36. Subdivision (2) of subsection (a) of section 54-76b of the
general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective October 1, 2014):

(2) "Youthful offender" means a youth who (A) is charged with the
commission of a crime which is not a class A felony or a violation of
section 14-222a, subsection (a) or subdivision (1) of subsection (b) of
section 14-224, as amended by this act, section 14-227a or 14-227g,
subdivision (2) of subsection (a) of section 53-21 or section 53a-70, 53a-
70a, 53a-70b, 53a-71, 53a-72a or 53a-72b, except a violation involving

consensual sexual intercourse or sexual contact between the youth and

another person who is thirteen years of age or older but under sixteen
years of age, and (B) has not previously been convicted of a felony in
the regular criminal docket of the Superior Court or been previously
adjudged a serious juvenile offender or serious juvenile repeat
offender, as defined in section 46b-120.

Sec. 37. Subsection (a) of section 54-76c of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
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October 1, 2014):

(@) In any case where an information or complaint has been laid
charging a defendant with the commission of a crime, and where it
appears that the defendant is a youth, such defendant shall be
presumed to be eligible to be adjudged a youthful offender and the
court having jurisdiction shall, but only as to the public, order the
court file sealed, unless such defendant (1) is charged with the
commission of a crime which is a class A felony or a violation of
section 14-222a, subsection (a) or subdivision (1) of subsection (b) of
section 14-224, as amended by this act, section 14-227a or 14-227g,
subdivision (2) of subsection (a) of section 53-21 or section 53a-70, 53a-
70a, 53a-70b, 53a-71, 53a-72a or 53a-72b, except a violation involving

consensual sexual intercourse or sexual contact between the youth and

another person who is thirteen years of age or older but under sixteen
years of age, or (2) has been previously convicted of a felony in the
regular criminal docket of the Superior Court or been previously
adjudged a serious juvenile offender or serious juvenile repeat
offender, as defined in section 46b-120. Except as provided in
subsection (b) of this section, upon motion of the prosecuting official,
the court may order that an investigation be made of such defendant
under section 54-76d, for the purpose of determining whether such
defendant is ineligible to be adjudged a youthful offender, provided
the court file shall remain sealed, but only as to the public, during such

investigation.

Sec. 38. Subsection (a) of section 54-76l of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
October 1, 2014):

(@) The records or other information of a youth, other than a youth
arrested for or charged with the commission of a crime which is a class
A felony or a violation of section 14-222a, subsection (a) or subdivision

(1) of subsection (b) of section 14-224, as amended by this act, section
14-227a or 14-227g, subdivision (2) of subsection (a) of section 53-21 or
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section 53a-70, 53a-70a, 53a-70b, 53a-71, 53a-72a or 53a-72b, except a
violation involving consensual sexual intercourse or sexual contact
between the youth and another person who is thirteen years of age or
older but under sixteen years of age, including fingerprints,
photographs and physical descriptions, shall be confidential and shall
not be open to public inspection or be disclosed except as provided in
this section, but such fingerprints, photographs and physical
descriptions submitted to the State Police Bureau of Identification of
the Division of State Police within the Department of Emergency
Services and Public Protection at the time of the arrest of a person
subsequently adjudged, or subsequently presumed or determined to
be eligible to be adjudged, a youthful offender shall be retained as
confidential matter in the files of the bureau and be opened to
inspection only as provided in this section. Other data ordinarily
received by the bureau, with regard to persons arrested for a crime,
shall be forwarded to the bureau to be filed, in addition to such
fingerprints, photographs and physical descriptions, and be retained in
the division as confidential information, open to inspection only as

provided in this section.

Sec. 39. Subsection (i) of section 54-76l of the general statutes is
repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective
October 1, 2014):

(i) The records of any youth adjudged a youthful offender for a
violation of section 14-215 or 14-222, subsection (b) of section 14-223 or

subdivision (2) of subsection (b) or subsection (c) of section 14-224, as

amended by this act, shall be disclosed to the Department of Motor

Vehicles for administrative use in determining whether suspension of
such person's motor vehicle operator's license is warranted. Such
records disclosed pursuant to this subsection shall not be further
disclosed.

Sec. 40. Subsection (b) of section 54-209 of the 2014 supplement to
the general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
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thereof (Effective October 1, 2014):

(b) The Office of Victim Services or, on review, a victim
compensation commissioner may also order the payment of
compensation in accordance with the provisions of sections 54-201 to
54-233, inclusive, for personal injury or death that resulted from the
operation of a motor vehicle by another person who was subsequently
convicted with respect to such operation for a violation of subsection
(a) or subdivision (1) of subsection (b) of section 14-224, as amended by
this act, or section 14-227a, 53a-56b or 53a-60d. In the absence of a

conviction, the Office of Victim Services or, on review, a victim

compensation commissioner may order payment of compensation
under this section if, upon consideration of all circumstances
determined to be relevant, the office or commissioner, as the case may
be, reasonably concludes that another person has operated a motor
vehicle in violation of subsection (a) of section 14-224, as amended by
this act, or section 14-227a, 53a-56b or 53a-60d.

This act shall take effect as follows and shall amend the following
sections:

Section 1 from passage New section

Sec. 2 July 1, 2014 14-12g(b)

Sec. 3 from passage 14-36(b)

Sec. 4 from passage 14-36g(a)(3)

Sec. 5 from passage 14-37a(b)

Sec. 6 from passage 14-41(f)

Sec. 7 from passage 14-44(d)

Sec. 8 October 1, 2014 14-44e(g)

Sec. 9 October 1, 2014 14-44e

Sec. 10 October 1, 2014 14-44h(a) and (b)
Sec. 11 January 1, 2015 14-50(d)

Sec. 12 July 1, 2014 14-52(b)(4)

Sec. 13 July 1, 2014 14-52a

Sec. 14 July 1, 2014 14-61b

Sec. 15 July 1, 2014 14-62(a)

Sec. 16 from passage 14-63(a)
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Sec. 17 October 1, 2014 14-66b
Sec. 18 July 1, 2014 14-73(e)
Sec. 19 July 1, 2014 14-145
Sec. 20 July 1, 2014 14-150(g) to (i)
Sec. 21 October 1, 2014 14-163d
Sec. 22 October 1, 2014 14-166(a)
Sec. 23 October 1, 2014 14-224
Sec. 24 July 1, 2014 14-275(b)
Sec. 25 from passage 14-282a
Sec. 26 July 1, 2014 49-61
Sec. 27 July 1, 2014 14-280(a)
Sec. 28 from passage 13b-59(g)
Sec. 29 October 1, 2014 14-36i(b)
Sec. 30 October 1, 2014 14-111(b)
Sec. 31 October 1, 2014 14-226
Sec. 32 October 1, 2014 38a-806(c)
Sec. 33 October 1, 2014 46b-124(k)
Sec. 34 October 1, 2014 54-1q
Sec. 35 October 1, 2014 54-56e(b)
Sec. 36 October 1, 2014 54-76b(a)(2)
Sec. 37 October 1, 2014 54-76c¢(a)
Sec. 38 October 1, 2014 54-761(a)
Sec. 39 October 1, 2014 54-761(i)
Sec. 40 October 1, 2014 54-209(b)

Statement of Purpose:
To make revisions to the motor vehicle laws.

[Proposed deletions are enclosed in brackets. Proposed additions are indicated by underline,
except that when the entire text of a bill or resolution or a section of a bill or resolution is new, it is
not underlined.]
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